
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Date Not Specified. 
 01476 406080

Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Thursday, 12 September 2019 at 2.00 pm
Newton Room - Guildhall Arts Centre, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Ray Wootten (Chairman)
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Mike Exton, Councillor Jan Hansen, Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, 
Councillor Ian Stokes and Councillor Amanda Wheeler

Agenda
1.  Comments form Members of the Public

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2.  Membership
The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3.  Apologies

4.  Disclosure of Interest
Members are asked to disclose any interest in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

5.  Action Notes from the meeting held on 13 June 2019 (Pages 3 - 7)

6.  Updates from the previous meeting

Rural and 
Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


7.  Update from Cabinet

8.  Update on Condensate Pipes
Report from the Cabinet Member for Housing.

(Pages 9 - 13)

9.  Modernising Housing Services - Review and Restructure
Report from the Cabinet Member for Housing.

(Pages 15 - 19)

10.  Equalities Annual Position Statement 2019
Report from the Cabinet Member Communities, Health and Wellbeing.

(Pages 21 - 49)

11.  Work Programme (Pages 51 - 52)

12.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



Meeting of the
Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Thursday, 13 June 2019, 2.00 pm

Committee Members present

Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing
Councillor Mike Exton
Councillor Jan Hansen
Councillor Ian Stokes
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten (Chairman)

Officers Other Members present

Assistant Director Resource (Richard Wyles)
Assistant Chief Executive Housing (Ken Lyon)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)

Councillor Paul Wood

1. Membership

The Chairman invited all those present to give a brief introduction.

The Committee were then notified that Councillor Bisnauthsing was 
substituting for Councillor Wheeler and Councillor Linda Wootten was 
substituting for Councillor Kaberry-Brown.

2. Apologies

An apology for absence had been received from the Cabinet Member for 
Communities, Health and Wellbeing, Councillor Reid who had a previous 
engagement.

3. Disclosure of Interest

None disclosed.

3

Agenda Item 5



4. Consideration of the Remit and Work Programme of the Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman wished to place on record his thanks to the previous Chairman 
of the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee Bob Sampson.

The Chairman circulated to Members of the Committee a list which showed 
the remit of the Cabinet Member for Communities, Health and Wellbeing and 
the Cabinet Member for Housing.  He also wanted to add the delivery of street 
cleansing in rural areas, loneliness, leisure provision for rural areas and 
refuse.

One Member asked if a paper could be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Committee on the turnaround of properties.

Another Member referred to the reduction in Post Offices in rural areas 
together with the lack of cash points and bus routes.  Would it be possible to 
ask someone in to speak on these subjects?  

A further comment was made about the merging of three doctor’s surgeries in 
Stamford and the problems this was causing.  The Chairman indicated that 
that he would contact the Chief Executive Officer for the North West Anglian 
Trust to see what was happening. He also advised that Councillor Brailsford 
was the Lincolnshire County Councillor who sat on the Trust Board.

The issue of reduced services for rural villages was again raised particularly in 
relation to lack of bus services.  Visits to particular areas in the district had 
been undertaken under the Rural OSC and it was suggested that this be 
continued.  The Chairman indicated that if a topic was specific to a certain 
area then looking to visit that area would be considered.

Housing management was another item raised especially in connection to 
Liberty Gas and their attitudes.  The Chairman of the Governance and Audit 
Committee informed the Committee that a verbal update would be given at the 
next meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee and it was confirmed 
that a report on frozen condensate pipes was due to come to next meeting of 
Rural and Communities Committee.    Reference was also made to the 
Cabinet Forward Plan and items that maybe of interest to the Committee to 
scrutinize in the future.

Following the suggestions made by the Committee the Chairman suggested 
that he and the Assistant Chief Executive Housing compile a draft work 
programme and circulate it with the next agenda. 

 Action Note

The Chairman to meet with the Assistant Chief Executive Housing to 
compile a draft work programme for circulation with the next agenda.

4



5. Crowd Funding

Members had been circulated with a report on Crowd Funding.  Crowd 
Funding had most commonly been seen for small business start-ups rather 
than civic initiatives however there was now an opportunity to utilize this 
funding approach for community ventures.  This had been very successful in 
urban areas such as Manchester, Dorset, Liverpool and Plymouth who had 
seen funding available for community –based projects extended up to 300%.   

The Council currently awarded a budget to Lincolnshire Community and 
Voluntary Service (CVS) to administer a community fund for the district.  The 
Community Fund provided grants up to £10,000 for community initiatives and 
had a very positive impact on communities.  Crowd Funding was a different 
initiative but one which would complement the Community Fund.  It was noted 
that a review of the Community Fund should be included as a future work 
programme item for the Committee.

Action Note

Include the Community Fund as a work programme item.

The online platform called Spacehive had provided Crowd funding services to 
civic and community initiatives for eight years, another established site was 
kickstarter.com but that was more in relation to entrepreneurs.   Spacehive 
was backed by a number of national enterprises who provided additional 
funding to support community initiatives.  Spacehive would go into 
communities to promote initiatives using on community based projects, 
workshops and focus groups.  Stakeholder groups would look at funding 
proposals and if worthy of support forward the initiative to the Spacehive 
platform.    A fictitious example was given to the Committee of how crowd 
funding could be used to help place shaping which would benefit businesses.   
The funding being asked to be released by the Governance and Audit 
Committee was £30k, which was made up of £10k to access the platform and 
£20k to be used for the community engagement to stimulate schemes working 
in focus groups and taking project sponsors.  There were two rounds during a 
year to promote the interests registered.  The contract was a three year rolling 
contract and the Assistant Director Resources stressed that a complete legal 
assessment would be made before a contract was entered into.  This would 
be the first time that crowd funding had been undertaken in a rural area which 
was why it was proposed that a one year pilot scheme be considered.  A 
review was proposed to take place after nine months to see if the initiative 
was successful.  A review at this time would enable notice to be given if it was 
not successful.

The recommendation before the Committee was for the Committee to 
recommend to the Government and Audit Committee to make an allocation of 
£30k from year end balances to fund the Spacehive platform and that a further 
allocation of £70k be made from year end balances to contribute towards 

5



community interest ventures through the Spacehive platform.  A Non Key 
would be made to enter into a contract with Spacehive subject to the funding 
being released.

A discussion followed about how the fund would work and what evidence was 
available that this was needed at this time.  The Assistant Director Resources 
indicated that there was no hard evidence but it captured a layer of funding 
that did not have a financial cap which the Community Fund had.  Crowd 
funding was on a larger scale than the Community Fund which was more 
based on refurbishing a village hall.  

Buy into any initiative would be open to anyone whether that was a business 
or an individual in the street.   The proposed review would see where the level 
of interest rested and whether or not they were skewed to certain sectors.

One Member did express concern that previous Crowd Funding had taken 
place in large cities or metropolitan areas not small rural areas.   It was agreed 
that only large urban areas had benefitted, but South Kesteven would be the 
first one to embrace the initiative at a more rural level.  Only time would tell in 
relation to the impact and scale of the initiatives brought forward under the 
Spacehive platform which was why a pilot was being proposed.

Success rates were then discussed and it was confirmed that Spacehive did 
have a proven track record working with Local Authorities.  Further discussion 
followed in relation to examples of initiatives, the contract timeframe and that 
the four main towns were more of a target rather than the villages.  It was 
stressed that if Members decided to go down the route of Spacehive then the 
review would look at the types of initiatives put forward for funding.

Further discussion on the location and funding followed and the Assistant 
Director Resources indicated that the proposal was for a one year pilot 
scheme with the right to reserve to terminate the contract after nine months 
after the launch of the scheme to give the three months required notice from 
the date of the scheme launch.  Clarity on the legalities would be looked at 
before any contract was entered into.

Mention was made of having the contract for two years but it was felt that a 
one year pilot would give a natural trajectory of whether it was working or not.  
The recommendation contained within the report was moved and seconded 
and agreed.

Recommendation to the Governance and Audit Committee

The Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
recommends that the Governance and Audit Committee make an 
allocation of £30k from year end balances to fund the Spacehive 
platform and that a further allocation of £70k is made from year end 

6



balances to contribute towards community interest ventures through the 
Spacehive platform.

6. Close of meeting

The Chairman thanked everyone for their attendance and closed the meeting 
at 14:58pm.

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Rural and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee
12 September 2019

Report of: Councillor Barry Dobson
Cabinet Member for Housing

        

SKDC Housing Condensate Pipe Remedial Programme

Report Author

Andrew Sweeney, Head of Improvements and Repairs

01476 406411

a.sweeney@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Harrinder Rai, Assistant Director, Housing 28 August 2019

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director 30 August 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Barry Dobson, Cabinet Member for 
Housing 30 August 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. The Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the update on 
the progress of the measures being implemented to reduce the risk of boiler 
failures during cold weather periods. 

9

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
Extreme cold weather in the winter of 2018 resulted in the failure of a number of gas boilers 
serving the Council’s homes (215 in total) due to condensate pipes freezing. The frozen 
pipes were dealt with at the time and the heating made operational at no cost to the Council 
as this is included under the current contract terms with Liberty Group. Tenants were 
however affected as a result of the loss of heating whilst the reinstatement work was 
completed and the occurrence highlighted a risk in terms of the performance of the boilers 
in exceptionally cold weather.

1.1 A report to the Governance and Audit Committee in September 2018 provided an update 
on the findings of an inspection of several of the affected properties.  (The inspection was 
carried out by the technical advisor from the manufacturer, Worcester Bosch).

1.2 The Worcester Bosch technical advisor acknowledged that temperatures experienced in 
2018 were excessively low and confirmed that whilst the installations met the design 
requirements of the manufacturer, additional measures could be taken to reduce the risk of 
further failures in similar cold weather conditions in the future. 

1.3 In response to the Worcester Bosch technical advisor’s feedback. inspections of all 215 
properties, has commenced by the Council and a programme of work started to modify the 
installations to safeguard against condensate pipes freezing and further heating failures in 
the future.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received
2.1 Consultation with the boiler manufacturer was considered critical in reaching a solution to 

the problem of freezing condensate pipes in the future, given that the initial installations met 
the requirements of Worcester Bosch. Mitigation measures (as set out at 4.1 below) 
recommended by the supplier and design changes on future new installations have now 
been adopted.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 The inspection of the 215 properties affected has been given priority and work has 

commenced in accordance with the mitigation measures recommended by the 
manufacturer, Worcester Bosch. This is to ensure the risk of further freezing in the 
previously affected locations is minimised.

3.2 The option to deal with the affected 215 properties in isolation was considered. However, 
checks will be required on all residential properties, owned by the Council to identify the 
locations of the installed condensate pipes to ensure all possible measures are taken to 
minimise the risk of freezing in the future. 

This has been implemented through Liberty Group, who attend and visit, annually, all 
Council owned homes, which have gas boilers, as part of the gas servicing programme.

10



4 Preferred Option
4.1 Measures have been implemented to determine if any other Council homes are at risk of 

heating failures resulting from frozen condensate pipes should excessively low 
temperatures occur. The overall approach being made is as follows:

- Modifications where needed to the 215 properties affected during 2018 as a priority

- Inspections carried out on other Council owned properties to determine where external 
condensate pipe arrangements need protection against freezing.  This will be checked 
as part of the annual gas servicing and testing programme by Liberty Group. Any work 
needed will be carried out in line with the supplier’s recommendations.

- Adopting improved standards in the design and the siting of new boilers to avoid 
externally sited condensate pipes where possible

- Additional protection against freezing on condensate pipes to new boiler installations 
where external pipework is unavoidable.

4.2 Progression on the measures detailed at Item 4.1 are set out as follows;

- Contact has been made with all 215 properties.  145 surveys of the 215 homes affected 
by freezing, has been completed.

All other Council owned residential homes are programmed in for visits or re-visits where 
tenants were unable to meet the appointment date. 

- 115 of the 145 surveyed properties need work completing and these are already 
progressing. Both the Council’s internal operatives and Liberty Group are being used to 
complete the work to achieve completion before the cold weather periods.

- Inspections and feedback is being provided by Liberty Group as part of the annual gas 
servicing and inspection. Any that have been identified for modification work to meet the 
Worcester Bosch latest recommendations are being programmed in.

- All new boiler installation designs are including the provision of internally routed 
condensate pipes, where possible, to reduce the risk of freezing.

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
5.1 Report is for noting.

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 Communication with tenants has been through a range of methods, from visits, letters and 

telephone calls. 

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 The cost of the modification work to the boilers to the 215 homes affected is estimated to 

be a maximum of £30k. It is considered that cost of the work can be contained within the 
existing HRA budgets for 2019/20

The cost and full extent of the work required on the remainder of the Council’s homes with 
gas heating will be determined once all properties have been visited by Liberty Group and 
will be considered as part of the budget setting process. It is worth noting that not all homes 
however have external condensate pipes installed.

11



Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 The Council has a duty as a landlord to ensure that its homes meet the Decent Homes 

Standard 2006 in providing a reasonable degree of thermal comfort. This is by way of 
effective insulation and efficient heating. 

8.2 The Council also has statutory repairing obligations under Section 96 of the Housing Act 
1985.  Furthermore, Regulations 36 and 36A of the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) 
Regulations 1998 places a duty on this Council to ensure each gas appliance and flue is 
safe to use 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy Legal Services 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 None

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 Risk and mitigation has been included in the main report.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 None

12 Other Implications (where significant) 
12.1 Concerns over the loss of heating and hot water to residents’ homes has highlighted a need 

for a more robust protocol to provide backup services.
12.2 Historically, electric convector heaters have been provided and residents requested to use 

immersion heaters where these are present for hot water.

12.3 This may be considered acceptable in the short term but delays in the completion of 
repairs for example; whilst parts are obtained prolongs the reliance on this arrangement.

The use of temporary heating has also given rise to claims from tenants for increased energy 
costs.

12.4 A contingency protocol is proposed that will address the need for temporary heating and hot 
water in the medium term broadly in line with that adopted for the Riverside project in 
Grantham. This is as follows;

- Short Term 1-3 days – use of temporary electric convector or oil filled radiators for 
heating. Use of Immersion heater, kettle and electric shower for hot water/washing.

- Mid-Term over 3 days – use of temporary heating as above however, the Council will 
reimburse the tenant of any bona fide additional costs for energy.

  
12.5 Discussions are in progress with Liberty Group on the delivery of this protocol and agree to 

its implementation. A review of the current performance timescales being achieved on 
heating and hot water repairs is also being carried out to ensure the Council’s exposure to 
resident reimbursement costs for temporary heating is minimised.  

12



13 Background Papers
13.1 Governance and Audit Committee of 20 September 2018  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21371/Gas%20Boiler%20Report%20G_A%20final
%20version.pdf

14 Appendices
14.1 None

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

N/A

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee

20 September 2018

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  N/A

13

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21371/Gas%20Boiler%20Report%20G_A%20final%20version.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21371/Gas%20Boiler%20Report%20G_A%20final%20version.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Rural & Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee
12th September 2019

Report of: Councillor Barry Dobson- Cabinet 
Member for Housing

        

Modernising Housing Services- Review & Restructure

Report Author

Helen Clarke, Head of Housing Services

 01476 406251

 Helen.clarke@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Harrinder Rai, Assistant Director, Housing 28 August 2019

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director 30 August 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Barry Dobson, Cabinet Member for 
Housing 30 August 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. The Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the review 
and restructure undertaken to improve the quality and performance of Housing 
Services.

15

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 Housing Services focuses on the council’s existing tenants and prospective tenants and 

covers the following areas: -

- Tenancy management

- Housing allocations and options

- Homelessness

- Temporary accommodation

- Supported housing

- Housing policy and strategy

- Housing client role for grounds maintenance

- Housing related anti-social behaviour

1.2 Over the last 15 years the services provided have largely been unchanged, which has led 
to, in some areas, practices becoming outdated and services not being efficient. In 2018 the 
Council undertook a tenants’ satisfaction survey with all our tenants, the results of which 
were reported to Cabinet. The key headlines affecting this service were: -

 83% satisfied with the service provided as a landlord
 86% satisfied with their neighbourhood
 76% felt we provide an effective service

A further tenants’ survey is planned for 2021.

1.3 The Council’s Corporate Strategy priorities for growth, agility and competitiveness resulted 
in the need to structure the service to align how we work with what we are trying to achieve.

1.4 This means looking to find better ways of delivering services to our customers; providing 
opportunities for innovation, service and staff development and delivering an efficient value 
for money service whilst at the same time striving for excellence.

1.5 In January 2019 a process began to review key strategic and operational issues, along with 
the need to modernise the whole service based upon the principles of building in resilience, 
flexibility and a greater strategic focus on performance.

1.6 In parallel a full review and restructure was undertaken in the Housing Repairs and 
Improvements service due to their close relationship to maximise efficiencies and 
opportunities to improve the service.

1.7 The key aims of the Housing Services review and restructure were: -

 Maximising the resources available by making best use of skill sets, realigning posts to 
focus on key areas of demand 

 Building resilience into teams and the service as a whole – the introduction of an 
officer/assistant split across the teams ensures support is available during fluctuations 
in workloads and provides an opportunity for assistants to develop knowledge and skills 
to move into officer posts as career progression

16



 Modernising the service – introducing different systems (ie Choice Based Lettings) to 
ensure the customer is at the heart of service delivery, benchmarking with other 
authorities to establish best practice

 Exploring opportunities for savings/income generation to fund improved service delivery

 Realigning services to reflect a change in focus from enforcement to support and from 
being reactive to being preventative – using resources to be proactive

 Placing a greater emphasis on engagement with customers in shaping services and 
delivery of key outcomes

 Greater strategic focus on targets and performance – ensuring team and individual 
targets are clear. Regular performance monitoring and feedback to customers, teams 
and individuals to help build accountability and identify opportunities for development 
and improvement 

 Reviewing current accommodation provision in order to realign it with demand, and 
formulating a strategic plan to include opportunities to redevelop and plan for the future

 Reduce void times and associated costs

 Introduce a new tenancy agreement, tenancy strategy and tenant engagement 
framework in order to lay the foundations for lasting change with customers

1.8 Operational Changes

Through the restructure we have placed a greater emphasis on prevention and proactive 
intervention, reducing our reactive nature and using enforcement as a last resort. The 
introduction of a team of Tenancy Support Officers, working alongside a grant funded full 
time worker to prevent repeat homelessness of rough sleepers for a year, will strive to 
encourage sustainable and independent tenants, and reduce the levels of enforcement and 
repeat homelessness.

1.9 We have introduced service standards for our customers, supported by work plans 
(incorporating deadlines) for Housing Options, Tenancy Services and Policy and Strategy 
to drive service improvement in a number of key areas.

1.10 Within the Housing Options Team and the Tenancy Management Team, the introduction of 
the Homeless Prevention Assistants (increasing from 2 to 4) and Housing Assistants are 
valuable to our service in two key ways. They provide a platform for individuals to develop 
and learn the skills required to become our Officers of the future, enabling the Council to 
retain staff. They also provide flexibility and resilience within the teams to cover workloads 
and deal with periods of a high-volume intake of work.

1.11 New KPIs will focus upon a variety of identified priorities across the team on a monthly, 
quarterly, annual and bi-annual basis. Embedding a clear focus and shared goal along with 
improved communication is the foundation to any long-lasting successful change and 
service improvement over the years to come.

17



1.12 Housing Strategy & Policy

A greater focus on strategy and policy is also central to the service changes; we are 
reviewing the ways we work and updating our policies and procedures to ensure they are fit 
for purpose and give our customers the best possible service, and have produced a new 
Tenancy agreement, Tenancy engagement framework and tenancy strategy to again 
ensure we have a solid foundation upon which to build.

1.13 Voids

During 2018/19 the Housing Department dealt with 435 empty properties. The average time 
taken to re-let those properties was 45 days with over 63% being let on the first offer.

Work has already begun to improve the time taken to re-let an empty property and both the 
Housing Services Team and the Repairs and Improvement team are developing more lean 
processes, that avoid unnecessary actions and duplication and we have already made a 
number of changes to processes to try and reduce the time taken.  One of the issues is 
around the way the council currently allocates properties through a ‘matching’ process, 
which is an outdated approach and not tenant-focused.

The new structure, along with the introduction of Choice Based Lettings, which we hope to 
have in place in 2020, will strive to reduce time taken to allocate and sign up a new tenant 
to a property, and therefore drive down the total void time. At a more strategic level we have 
also completed a mapping exercise with the Voids Team to look at the process with a view 
to identifying improvements. We have also prioritised returning high demand properties from 
voids for quick letting rather than hard to let properties. 

A detailed and focused report on void management will be presented to members of this 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its next meeting in November.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received.
2.1 Staff workshops were delivered in partnership with the Lightbox team in January 2019, key 

strategic and operational issues were identified, along with the need to modernise the whole 
service based upon principles of building in resilience, flexibility and a greater strategic focus 
on performance. 

2.2 In May 2019 a full consultation with staff commenced in order to propose a new structure 
following a review of the service. Consultation comments were captured ensuring staff were 
a key part of the review in order to make the best use of the resources we have.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 The review could have focused on a particular area of the service to phase improvements, 

however, it was felt a full and comprehensive review was the most appropriate way to 
ensure service improvements, cultural change and improved performance.

4 Preferred Option
4.1 The new structure went live on 5th August 2019 and whilst still in transition with some key 

posts yet to be recruited, improvements have already been seen in managing tenancies 
more effectively.

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
5.1 Report is for noting

18



6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 A further report on the void management service will be provided to members at the next 

meeting of the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 There are no direct implications associated with the noting of this report, budget 

adjustments as part of the review will feed into the 2019/20 HRA budget.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 There are no direct legal implications associated with the noting of this report. The 

introduction of choice-based lettings is not currently accommodated in the Council’s 
Housing Allocation Policy. The introduction of this new way of working would mean the 
Allocation Policy would need to be amended in accordance with Part VI of the Housing Act 
1996

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy Legal Services 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 None; any changes to policy that are required, for example the introduction of choice 

based lettings, will be the subject of equality analysis when the matter is brought forward 
for decision.

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 Risk has been considered in the preparation of this report and no high risks have been 

identified. The review was undertaken based on experience, knowledge, benchmarking, 
research and consultation.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report.

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Previously Considered by: Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Rural and Communities 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
12 September 2019

Report of: Councillor Robert Reid
Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Health and Wellbeing

        

Equality and Diversity Annual Position Statement 2019
The Council is required, under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 to publish information on an 
annual basis showing its compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty.  This report therefore 
presents the Equality and Diversity Annual Position Statement 2019.

Report Author

Carol Drury, Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer

 01476 406 161

 c.drury@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Mark Jones, Community Resilience Lead 23 August 2019

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director Commercial and 
Operations 23 August 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Communities, Health and Wellbeing 28 August 2019

Recommendation to the decision maker (s)

1. It is recommended that members of Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee review the appended Equality and Diversity Annual Position Statement 
and note its content prior to its approval for publication.

21

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 imposes a duty on public sector organisations when 

exercising public functions to have due regard to:

    Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation
 Advance opportunities for people who share a protected characteristic and those 

who don’t share it
 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 

those who don’t share it.

1.2 These are known as the three aims of the general Equality Duty.

1.3 Two further requirements are placed on us, which are to:

 Publish information to show our compliance with the Equality Duty, at least 
annually, and 

 Set and publish equality objectives, at least every four years.

1.4 The publication must include information to show that we have consciously thought about 
the three aims of the Equality Duty and it must also include information relating to 
employees who share protected characteristics (for public bodies with 150 or more 
employees) and information relating to people who are affected by the public body’s 
policies and practices who share protected characteristics (e.g. service users, tenants 
etc).

1.5 The purpose of the Annual Position Statement is, therefore, to provide and overview of 
how this Council has complied with the three aims of the Duty.  

1.6 The Annual Position Statement is for publication to the general public for information 
purposes.

1.7 The law does not prescribe a required format for this document.  Organisations can 
present information in any way they choose.  They can also determine content beyond 
that listed above.

1.8 This Council’s Annual Position Statement provides the required information plus 
background to its vision and priorities, values and behaviours and the good practice of our 
partners and across our services to show that due regard is integral to our interactions and 
delivery. 

1.9 Going forward the Authority needs to publish new equality objectives and an associated 
action plan for 2019-2023 to ensure we continue to comply with the Duty. Service areas 
from across the Authority will be required to feed in and help deliver on our objectives 
going forward.    

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 Feedback from members of the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

is welcomed and will be fed back to the Cabinet Member for Communities, Health and 
Wellbeing.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 N/A

22



4 Preferred Option
4.1 N/A

5 Reasons for the Recommendation
5.1 To inform Members of action taken to ensure we comply with the law on equality and to 

assure Members of this Council’s commitment to the equitability of its services and their 
delivery.

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 Following feedback from the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

the Cabinet Member for Communities, Health and Wellbeing will be asked to approve the 
Equality and Diversity Annual Position Statement 2019 for publication to the Council’s 
website.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 The public sector Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) came into force in 

2011.  The Equality Duty applies to public bodies and others carrying out public functions.  
It supports good decision-making by ensuring public bodies consider how different people 
will be affected by their activities, helping them to deliver policies and services which are 
accessible to all and which meet different people’s needs.

8.2 The Equality Duty is supported by specific duties, set out in regulations.  The specific 
duties require public bodies to publish relevant, proportionate information demonstrating 
their compliance with the Equality Duty and to set themselves specific, measurable 
equality objectives.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Services

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 Equality impact is identified through the production of this document.  In producing this 

document we are also able to identify potential areas of under representation in our 
workforce and highlight good practice. The Equality and Diversity Annual Position 
Statement aims to improve awareness of equality responsibilities and further embed those 
responsibilities within our working practices.  

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 No risks relating to this report have been identified.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 There are no direct community safety implications resulting from this report. 

12 Other Implications (where significant) 
12.1 None identified.

23



13 Background Papers
13.1 None.

14 Appendices
14.1 Equality and Diversity Annual Position Statement 2019.

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Previously Considered by: Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

24



Equality and Diversity

Annual Position Statement 2019

25



Contents

Introduction 3

Equality Act 2010 3

Our Corporate Vision and Priorities 4 

Our Values and Behaviours 5 

Service Delivery 6

Training and Development 6

Our Equality Objectives 7

Moving Forward 7

Equal Access for all 8 – 11

Inclusive Activity of our Partners 12 - 14

Our District 15

Our Communities 15

Our Tenants 16 - 20

Demographics of South Kesteven 21

Ethnicity in South Kesteven 22 

Our Workforce 23  – 25

Alternative Formats and Languages Information 26

26



Introduction

Welcome to South Kesteven District Council’s Annual Equality and Diversity Position 
Statement for 2019.

This Council promotes equality of opportunity in all of its functions. 

Our commitment to equalities is about long-term, continuous improvement.  It is the 
responsibility of all officers and elected Members to implement the principles of equality and 
diversity. We aim to ensure that these principles inform decision-making at every level within the 
Council reflecting our ongoing commitment to the elimination of unfair discrimination, the 
advancement of equality of opportunity for all and to foster good relations between different 
communities. 

We continue to work towards mainstreaming issues of equality and diversity into service 
delivery, employment and procurement for all aspects of our work. We are committed to 
providing equal access to services and employment for all people living, working and visiting the 
district.

This document provides general information relating to how we work in South Kesteven and 
provides a retrospective in terms of the make-up of the people who live and work within the 
district and gives highlights of our activity which supports equality of access to the services we 
provide. 

The Equality Act 

As a local authority the Council has a responsibility to meet the Equality Duty which is set by law 
as part of the Equality Act 2010. The duty gives protection for all persons who might be 
discriminated against because of their age, race, sex, gender reassignment, disability, sexual 
orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and marriage and civil partnership.

The duty requires us have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act.

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not. 

The specific duties placed on public bodies are to:

 Publish information to show our compliance with the Equality Duty – including 
information relating to employees who share protected characteristics and information 
relating to our service users

 Set and publish equality objectives, at least every four years

27



Our Corporate Vision and Priorities
Taken from our 2018-2025 Corporate Strategy – We are SK

Our first consideration is to make sure we can afford to deliver what we promise; not just this 
year or next year, but indefinitely.  Our core strategic goal is to achieve complete and 
sustainable financial autonomy by 2025, through commissioning services that are relevant to 
our community and valued by those who use them.

In order to get there, we all need to think differently about SKDC’s finances: how we are funded, 
how we can generate income, how we can reduce what we spend and find new ways to save.  
In other words, exactly how we all manage our own finances every day.

We will achieve this goal by focusing on three things: growth, agility and competitiveness.

To make sure we achieve these goals, we’re going to structure ourselves so that there is clear 
alignment between how we work and what we are trying to achieve.  In this way, whatever you 
do and wherever you sit in the organisation, you can trace the line to one or more of these 
goals.

We want to help South Kesteven to grow. A growing population and a growing economy 
creates jobs, secures infrastructure and attracts investment.  More housing means more council 
tax and more businesses means more business rates. Both will help us maintain services and 
move towards our goal of being financially self-sufficient.

When we talk about being an agile organisation, we mean being as lean as possible – or, if you 
prefer, only as large as we need to be – while being able to maintain our effectiveness in the 
long-term. Of course, being an agile organisation increases the importance of ensuring that 
every member of the team is highly motivated, highly capable and multi-skilled.

Lastly, we need to ensure that the services we provide are relevant, commercially competitive 
and delivered to a high standard.  While we have a duty to delivery some services, many are 
discretionary, but all of our services will be high quality, good value and contribute positively to 
the daily lives of the people of the district.

These services will be wide-ranging.  They will keep us safe; they will help keep our district 
clean; they will support those in need and enhance the quality of life through the cultural and 
artistic life of the district. SKDC and the services we provide are part of the fabric of the local 
communities we serve.

28



Our Values and Behaviours

Our Corporate Strategy – We are SK - defines the values and behaviours expected of our staff 
stating that:

The key values and behaviours that will determine our success are: accountability, flexibility, 
agility, equity, networking, ‘always learning’ and talent. These will not just be words; they 
are going to be incorporated into our job descriptions, our recruitment processes and staff 
development.

Accountability:  In order to succeed we will need a culture of accountability throughout SKDC. 
Everyone at every level will need to be responsible for what they do; willing to take ownership 
for their actions and decisions and being a reliable, dependable member of the team, often 
going beyond the normal terms of employment.  We cannot work flexibly without accountability.

Flexibility:  We can’t be set in our ways if we are going to succeed, so flexibility matters.  It 
might be flexibility in terms of the hours you do, the way you work or where you work.  We can’t 
afford to do things the same way just because “that’s the way it’s always been done”.  Our 
performance will be measured in outcomes and those outcomes will contribute to achieving our 
strategy.

Agility: Related to flexibility is agility. SKDC’s needs are going to change over time and we 
need people who can respond to those changes, who can move freely between teams and who 
want to stretch themselves by being trained to be better at more things.

Equity: Every member of the SKDC team matters, irrespective of their rank or position.  This 
hasn’t always been the case in the past, but it will be in the future.  All of us should expect to be 
treated with respect and dignity and doors should be open.  We will all be held to account for 
this.

Networking:  We learn from each other and from external partners, so we need to be better at 
networking.  Our networks hold the key to raising our profile, improving our performance, 
discovering better ideas and developing ourselves

Learning:  We are constantly learning from everything we do, regardless of success or failure.  
When we do something well, that knowledge can help us repeat and refine what we do in the 
future.  We clearly won’t seek failure, but neither will we be frightened of it.  And, if we fail, we 
will learn from it and not seek to just apportion blame.

Talent:  Having a diverse and talented team is fundamental to our success.  However, a 
person’s real talent isn’t always obvious:  sometimes it’s overlooked; other times it may be 
hidden or ignored.  Sometimes it’s a talent the person didn’t realise they had.  Harnessing talent 
will be everyone’s job, not just HR or senior managers.

29



Service Delivery

The Equality Duty requires public bodies to consider how the decisions they make and the 
services they deliver affect people who share different protected characteristics.  We have a 
process for analysis of equality impact for all our policies and procedures.  This form of analysis 
replaced the traditional equality impact assessments that have been undertaken for many years.  
Analysis begins prior to the introduction of, or change to, any policy or procedure.  Officers 
assess at this very early stage the impact our decisions will have on the people we serve.  We 
look for both positive and potential negative outcomes relating to the introduction of policies.  If 
positives are found we look at how we might extend those impacts across the protected 
characteristics.  If negatives are highlighted we look to remove them if possible and mitigate 
their impact if they remain.  We recognise that the impact our policies and procedures have on 
people is not always defined because of a single protected characteristic.  The need to look at a 
person as a whole, rather than component parts, is imperative when applying fairness to 
systems and decision making. Equality Analyses are taken into account throughout our 
overview, decision making and scrutiny processes by our Members to ensure that their 
decisions are fair and equitable for the diverse communities they have been elected to serve.  

As a provider of services, we make sure that the information we produce is clear, 
understandable and accessible.  We treat people with respect at all times ensuring that we are 
aware of, and acknowledge, their human rights.

Training and Development 

Awareness training is mandatory for all staff and new starters and covers our responsibilities in 
relation to the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty.  Topics covered include an 
overview of discrimination covering:

 Direct discrimination
 Indirect discrimination
 Discrimination by association
 Perception discrimination
 Harassment
 Victimisation

The training also highlights how stereotyping and labelling impact on how people interact with 
one another on both a personal and professional level.  Officers are informed of the need to 
complete equality analysis on all new and updated policy, procedure or function and that the 
process should be started as early as possible in the process of developing or reviewing and 
should continue throughout the process to ensure that all possible barriers to equal access are 
mitigated or removed completely.

Our elected Members and officers within our management team have also been provided with in 
house training which focuses on the decision-making process within the Council.  The training 
stresses the need for equality analysis to be provided with every applicable report to ensure that 
elected Members have access to all relevant information at the time a decision is made. 
Members have also been provided with training relating to Knowing Your Community which 
raises their awareness of the demographic of the District.  Each Member is supplied with a 
profile of their electoral ward and comparative data for a district-wide insight.

30



Our Equality Objectives 2015-2019

Objective How will we achieve this?
Through our policies, procedures and projects, 
ensure we are compliant with the Equality Act 
2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty

Incorporating equality analysis into the projects 
methodology to ensure consideration of the needs of 
our customers is at the heart of what we do from the 
earliest stage of development through to decision 
making

Ensure that all our staff, elected members and 
volunteers are aware of our responsibilities 
under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public 
Sector Equality Duty

Provide a range of training and awareness raising 
opportunities both face-to-face and e learning. 
Sessions to be held at induction, and six months for 
new starters. Existing staff, elected members and 
volunteers on a training pathway to ensure 
refreshers are undertaken every 2 years or earlier if 
required due to legislative changes

Engage our communities to participate in the 
determination of our priorities and decision 
making

Through the involvement of our Citizens Panel and 
other consultation events throughout the district

Moving forward

Under the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017, the Council is 
required by law to publish an annual gender pay gap report.  This information is published one 
year retrospectively. It’s 2018 report showed:

 Our mean gender pay gap 6.2%
 Our median gender pay gap 11.7%

The gender balance of the Council’s workforce in 2018 showed an almost even split (53% M – 
47% F) however, changes to the management structure had affected a significant increase in 
the Authority’s mean percentage (3.7% in 2017) whilst, in contrast, the median pay gap had 
almost halved (20% in 2017).

The Council identified it needed to look beyond the data to identify the issues, influences and 
practices that determine its gender pay gap. An action plan was been developed in order to 
address the imbalance and to help enhance our attraction within the employment market, 
promoting our commitment to flexible working and opening up opportunities to those who might 
previously have not considered a career in local government.  The plan also contains actions 
that will help to keep and develop the dedicated workforce the Authority has, making them feel 
valued and respected. 

We are currently working with a local faith group on a funding bid to develop and operate a Chat 
Café in Grantham. If successful the café will give people from migrant communities the 
opportunity to practice their English language in an informal, friendly setting. The intention from 
this project is to identify community champions who will link into the already established 
conversational English classes and the Migrant Community Network.

Equality officers and our Corporate Management Team will work together on the development 
and implementation of the Council’s equality objectives and associated action plan for 2019-
2023. Service areas from across the Authority will be required to feed in and help deliver on our 
objectives going forward.   

31



Equal Access for All

We are keen to show that we consider the needs of our residents when providing both statutory 
and discretionary services. The following examples are a snapshot of our commitment to having 
due regard for equality not only through analysis of the impact of new and updated policies but 
throughout all levels of service delivery and facilitation. 

Assisted Bin Collections

We help if people cannot move their wheelie bin or waste bags to the roadside 
edge for collection if they have a physical disability or injury.  We also help if 
people have other medical difficulties or conditions which make it difficult for 
them to put their rubbish out.  This includes those who need help for short 
periods of time following an accident or operation or during pregnancy.

Discretionary Grants

The Council has extended its range of 
discretionary grants.  These now include: 
hospital discharge grants (people who need 
works to their home and can’t return home until 
they are done), safe warm and well, grants for 
heating works and other works on the condition 
of a property effects the persons health and 
they are over 65 or have a relevant medical 
condition and dementia aids and adaptations, 
small aids or work which make the home safe 
for anyone with a dementia diagnosis.

Weddings and Civil 
Ceremonies

We offer facilities within 
our Arts Centres and 
Bourne Corn Exchange 
for weddings and civil 
partnership ceremonies 
and celebrations.

Access and Adaptation

Our Building Control team ensures through 
inspections that bathroom adaptations, 
ramps, lifts etc comply with legislation 
relating to access needs of people with 
disabilities. 

The team also advises on building access to 
ensure equitable standards for all.

Disabled Facilities Grants 
(DFG)

The Council has a statutory 
responsibility to provide means-
tested DFGs to adapt the 
homes of disabled people. 
Discretionary top-up payments 
may be made for works which 
exceed the mandatory grant 
limit.

Support for the vulnerable

We have signed up to the county hoarding 
protocol to support people with hoarding 

issues and ensure all agencies are working 
together to provide appropriate support.  

32



Communication
All staff have access to Language Line for instant 
translation services if no face-to-face interpreter is 
present. 

Our Customer Service Centre has a multi-lingual 
advisor to assist with interpretation.

Staff and customers have access to Text Relay to 
assist with calls to and from the Authority by 
people with hearing impairment. 

Use of videos with icon visuals in Customer 
Service Centre to clearly explain our services - e.g. 
how council tax money is spent in the district, The 
Big Clean.

Face-to-face appointments are available to help 
complete EU settlement documentation for non EU 
nationals

Face-to-face support is also available to help 
vulnerable customer use online applications – e.g. 
housing. 

Community Contact
Officers assist local community groups, 
volunteers and faith groups by signposting 
them to services, training and funding 
opportunities and support networks.  Often 
groups need help when they are starting 
out and we are able to put them in touch 
with other groups providing similar activities 
and services.  This promotes helps to foster 
good relations between people from 
different protected characteristics.

Street Scene

We provide easy read, pictorial, waste 
information leaflets for those who have difficultly 
reading, have a learning disability and for those 
whose first language is not English.

Translations and Alternative Formats

We provide any document in an alternative format on 
request.  We translate into other languages, provide 
documents in large print or Braille and also provide 
information in audio format.  We work with South 
Lincolnshire Blind Society to ensure residents with 
visual impairment have appropriately transcribed copies 
of our district magazine SK Today and we routinely 
provide translated information to food businesses – e.g. 
our Food Management Pack. 

Migrant Network
This partnership was established to bring together 
agencies and the voluntary sector to help integrate the 
support available to migrant workers who live and/or 
work in the district.  Facilitated by Lincolnshire CVS, the 
network has welcomed representatives from the 
Terrance Higgins Trust to promote the work they do to 
the migrant communities of the area; Grantham 
Passage to talk of the work they do with the homeless; 
Christians Against Poverty to discuss the budgeting 
course they offer to the vulnerable etc.  The network 
also acts as an information resource sharing details of 
health promotions, free ESOL course etc that are of 
benefit to the people who have settled within this District 
from other parts of the world.

Citizens’ Panel

We actively engage with our Citizens’ Panel 
which was set up to give local people the 
opportunity to have their say on lots of 
different services provided by the Council.  
The panel of 1000 people was recruited from 
the diverse communities of our district.  The 
feedback we receive is presented to service 
managers, senior management and Members 
of the Council and is used to help inform the 
decisions the Council makes.

 Tenancy Support Service

As a housing provider we recognise that 
some of our more vulnerable tenants will 
require support to sustain their tenancies. 
This is wide ranging support from navigating 
welfare benefits and maintaining rent 
payments to ensuring the condition of 
properties. Support is provided directly as 
well as sign-posted to other appropriate 
organisations. This service has provided 
support to hundreds of tenants to empower 
individuals and ensure sustainable tenancies.

33



Messages Group

The Guildhall Arts Centre developed a 
performance group of adults with learning 
disabilities which meets on a weekly basis. 
The group works with professional drama, 
music and dance artists and is fully integrated 
into the Arts Centre’s programme of activity. 
Members of the group have grown in 
confidence enough to use the facility as 
individuals between sessions with the 
practitioners.

Home Visits
Officers from with our Revenues and Benefits 
team provide home visits to people unable to 
attend the Council offices due to disability or 
ill health.  These visits can be to assist with 
applications for property adaptations or 
benefits claims.

Free ESOL Classes

In collaboration with Jubilee Church Life 
Centre the Council made a successful bid to 
the Controlling Migration Fund to provide 
conversational English classes and 
accompanying creche support for the migrant 
communities of Grantham.  The project, 
delivered by staff and volunteers from Jubilee 
fosters good relations between communities, 
advances opportunities for participants and 
helps promote integration.

Leisure Activities for all

The four leisure centres in the District, at Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and Deeping continue 
to offer a variety of sport and activity sessions specifically for people with disabilities, mental 
health issues, women and over the 50s.  These include:

Weekly Disabled Sports club; activities for people with learning difficulties and mental health 
issues; New Age Curling for people aged 60+; swimming lessons for people with hearing 
impairment run in partnership with Peterborough and District Deaf Children’s Society; 
swimming lessons for young people with moderate to severe physical disabilities; Bourne to 
Care, Heritage Care and Blackthorne Court utilize facilities in order to provide fitness classes 
for people with disabilities; Chair-based exercise classes are held weekly for older people; 
Health walks to encourage physical activity in the over 50s; ‘No Strings Badminton’ to 
encourage sports participation in the over 50s; adult swimming lessons are available at all 
sites; Walking Netball sessions are offered in partnership with England Netball; Walking 
Football and a disabled football group ‘Ability Counts.’ 

Stamford site is Deaf Friendly and accredited with NDCS.

Housing Home Visits

Housing staff visit people at home 
or arrange appointments in offices 
local to the customer to ensure 
that those individuals unable to 
travel easily receive the same 
service as others.

Sheltered Housing Common Rooms

We provide and maintain common rooms at our sheltered housing 
schemes to enable residents who might find difficulty in accessing 
other opportunities to socialize.

We also make the facilities available to community groups to provide 
support or leisure opportunities to residents of the scheme and other 
local people.  Some of the groups using our facilities are specific to 
residents with disabilities such as a group for visually impaired 
people and a support group for people with dementia and their 
families.

Assisted Garden Scheme

We recognize that some of our 
tenants cannot maintain their 
gardens due to disability or frailty.  
Where the tenant has no relatives 
who can help, we provide a 
garden assistance scheme. 

 Several hundred tenants have 
their gardens maintained through 
the scheme which allows them to 
continue to live independent lives 
within the community they call 
home.

Scheme Alarm Systems

Our 30 sheltered schemes all 
have alarm facilities to benefit the 
residents.  These can be used to 
summon help at any time.  

Where needed the alarm systems 
are also linked to the main doors 
of the scheme so residents who 
are unable to leave their flat can 
let visitors in.

Safeguarding

Our community-facing teams work 
closely with our colleagues in 
Children’s Services, Adult Social 
Care, P3, Mental Health Services, 
Domestic Abuse Services, Fire 
and Rescue and Lincolnshire 
Police to ensure we safeguard the 
most vulnerable people in our 
District. 

Resident Involvement

We engage with our tenants to enable them to 
feedback on the service we provide to them.  To 
ensure all tenants can provide feedback, we have a 
range of methods from formal meetings to surveys that 
can be completed at home or on a individual basis if 
requested.  Information is provided in a format that 
suits the individual, including translations if required. 
We provide support such as travel and caring 
expenses, training and information, and ensure all 
venues used as fully accessible and local to the 
tenants.  We feedback to tenants through a tenants’ 
newsletter that is sent to all tenants twice a year.

Events and Activities

Our Corporate Operations team continues 
to deliver Meres Live events at the Meres 
Leisure Centre in Grantham.  This 
location offers easy accessibility and 
services for all and provides a 
comfortable and friendly atmosphere for 
its users.

The Bourne Corn Exchange is fully 
wheelchair accessible with ramped 
access to the front of the building, 
dedicated parking for disabled users, 
accessible toilet facilities and a lift to the 
upper floor.  

Helpful teams are on hand to assist with 
navigational and accessibility needs and 
prominent signage and lighting ensure 
smooth navigation of the venues.

34



Inclusive Activity of our partners

1. INCREASE AND ENCOURAGE PARTICIPATION IN PHYSICAL AND (WHERE 
POSSIBLE) ARTS ACTIVITIES PARTICULARLY IN LOCALLY UNDER REPRESENTED 
GROUPS: 

Older People

Health Walks take place at Bourne and Deepings. The Health Walk Scheme at Stamford 
and Grantham shall be re-launching as soon as staff and volunteers are trained as Walk 
Leaders.
Bourne had 108 users attend the Friday walk average of 4 per week day/time needs 
reviewing for September. Deepings now has 2 walks per week with 480 people attending in 
the period from January to June. 

Active Life programmes are running at Grantham which are designed to encourage 
participation with a mixture of swimming, wet and dry classes and activities. Grantham has 
had 828 attendees during the period January to June.  

‘No Strings Badminton’ continues to take place each week at Grantham. This has been 
increased to 3 sessions per week due to the demand. This programme continues to be free 
of charge for gym members with a view to encouraging sport participation. A total 
throughput of 897 participants for the period were achieved.

Breathe Easy Class. The Grantham class has grown to around 20 members with an 
average of 10-15 attendees each week. Over the reporting period there have been 215 
participants. There is a steady flow of referrals from the pulmonary physiotherapist as each 
of her classes finish. 1Life are to provide a guest speaker to the British Lung Foundation 
Area meeting in September 2019

Adult Swimming Lessons are offered at all sites. Bourne has 5 enrolled into adult’s 
classes. This session will be reviewed for September. Deepings has 22 enrolled and has 
also launched a Swim Fit session with an average of 13 attending per week. Stamford 
Swim Fit sessions are now running and regularly have attendance of around 10 participants 
with the lessons really making an impact on those taking part. Grantham has 28 adults 
enrolled and the Friday women-only class is proving very popular.

 
U3A (University of the Third Age) New Age Curling has continued to be held at Grantham 
on a Tuesday with numbers continuing to hold at 15 per session. This equates to over 360 
users over the period.

Walking Football has continued to be a real success at Grantham throughout the period 
with it moving to the outdoor pitches for the summer period at the end of March. During the 
period of January to June there were 437 attendees. Walking football is now provided at 
Deepings through Glinton and Northborough Walking Football Club with an average of 15 
attending each session.

Walking Netball has evolved out of the growing demand for walking sports. Often, one of 
netball’s strengths is that people never forget playing the sport and the memories as well as 
the love for the game never leave. Walking Netball at Deepings is currently averaging 12 
participants per week. An instructor is now qualified at Bourne, and as a result it will be 
launched in September at Bourne. 

35



Vitality currently has 14 classes running per week, with an average weekly attendance of 
183 members. A review has taken place, and classes that were not viable have been 
removed from the scheme. New teachers are now on board and have received training 
from the original instructors to allow for continuity of lessons with holiday cover now 
provided.  New venues are currently being sourced in areas where there is demand with 
new classes planned to launch in September. Promotion of these will be done with 
assistance from Lincolnshire Co-op who coordinate the Walking for Health scheme across 
the county, as this is the ideal target audience for the classes.  

People with Physical and Mental Disabilities

The twice weekly disabled fitness classes at Bourne Leisure continue to work in 
partnership with Heritage Care, Blackthrorn Court and Bourne to Care. The fitness classes 
are circuit-based and are regularly attended by 10-12 users. Over this period the classes 
were attended by 518.

Heritage Care manage Supported Living services across South Lincolnshire, ensuring that 
people with disabilities and challenging needs can rely on 24-hour support. Activities held at 
Grantham Meres include swimming, arts and crafts, board games and multi sports activities 
with an average session attendance of 26 per day Tuesday and Thursday equating to 1,248 
over the January to June period.

Swimming Lessons for the Deaf, Stamford – these lessons, in partnership with The 
Peterborough and District Deaf Children’s Society, continue to go ahead a regular 
participation of 17 children who are deaf plus siblings between the ages of 3 -14. A small 
number of children that dip in and out of lessons due to health or family circumstances cause 
the weekly attendance to fluctuate at an average between 10 to 20 attendees on a regular 
basis.

Rehabilitation Classes. The 3 rehabilitation classes at Grantham continue to attract more 
diverse levels of disability including stroke victims, spinal cord injuries and mental health 
issues, with 140 attendees during the reporting period. A member of the team has attended 
a specialist course which makes it possible for stroke sufferers to attend the classes.  

A special needs swim group at Deepings on a Saturday is going from strength to strength 
with 7 participants per week.  This session has a waiting list currently in place. 

2. SUPPORT PROGRAMMES WHICH ADDRESS OBESITY, PARTICULARLY IN YOUNG 
PEOPLE

Junior Gym Sessions and a Junior Membership - There are currently 52 youths enrolled 
on the membership scheme. Grantham will maintain the current number of sessions.  Junior 
gym has also been launched at Stamford with 3 participants enrolled. The demand has 
dropped down and we are only consistently running one per week. Junior gym runs at 
Deepings twice a week with an average of 5 participants per session. A group exercise 
instructor has completed her qualification to deliver junior and family classes. 

Children’s Holiday Camps. Grantham’s OFSTED-registered sessions in partnership with 
Fit for Sport were run in the February half term with 114 children attending. Easter holidays 
saw 128 children attending and May half term 54 children participated.  Deepings delivers its 
own in-house camps with 192 children attending over the Easter holidays and May half term.  
A weekly activity Youth Club launched in April, to run on Friday evenings during term time, 

36



and has so far been attended by 30 children. This will be launched at Bourne for the summer 
holidays and will follow the same profile as the Deepings club. 

Gym School continues to operate from Grantham with an average of 125 children attending 
per week. Numbers have significantly dropped since local competition with a new gymnastics 
club was established. This has had an impact on the classes at Grantham for the older ‘more 
advanced’ group and has also impacted on the lower age groups. The strategy is to primarily 
coach and provide the ‘early years’ gymnastics classes as our niche. 3 coaches have 
attended Activity Leadership training run by British Gymnastics and we now have more 
qualified coaches to support with the programme. 

We continue to provide 2 gymnastics classes per week at Deepings with 30 children in 
attendance. We are unable to add additional classes in the Welland room due to other 
longstanding bookings, so alternative options in the main hall are being explored for the 
autumn.

School Swimming Aqua-Splash took place on Tuesday 16th July. There were just over 80 
participating children. The programme included water safety, Rookie lifeguard, water polo 
and a fun session.

Swim School Scholarships, Swim School numbers across the contract are stable at 3,800. 
Sites have again received a number of cancellations in May and June as members cancel 
for the summer. These members will be contacted in September for re-enrolment. Exit 
surveys indicate that many do progress on to Swimming Club, Water Polo Club and 
Lifesaving Clubs at the centres. A total of 8 Swim Scholarships were offered over the summer. 
The scholarships are offered to local schools with the individual being selected by the school 
based on a variety of agreed criteria with the school swimming team. 

3. PROVIDE EXERCISE REFERRAL AND/OR ARTS ON PRESCRIPTION PROGRAMMES

Stamford’s GP referral scheme continues under the supervision of freelance GP referral 
consultant and has seen 6 new participants join the course. Deepings has had 5 new 
participants on the scheme from January - June. Grantham hosts a weekly Breathe Easy 
(COPD) session attended by an average of 10-15 regular users. The sessions follow a 
format set by the British Lung Foundation by which candidates are referred by 
Physiotherapists and GPs for help with a variety of lung conditions including Asthma etc. 
Bourne’s GP referral scheme and COPD sessions have been increasing steadily in 
demand with numbers regularly achieving 6-8 each week. 

37



Profile of the District of South Kesteven

Our District

The district of South Kesteven is one of seven within the county of Lincolnshire and borders 
North Kesteven to the north, South Holland in the east, the unitary authorities of Rutland and 
Peterborough to the south and the counties of Leicestershire and Nottinghamshire to the west.

The district covers 943 square kilometers (365 sq miles) with the administrative centre in 
Grantham and three further market towns of Stamford, Bourne and Market Deeping. Two-thirds 
of the population lives in one of the four market towns and the remaining third live in one of over 
80 villages in the area. Released in June 2019 the ONS Mid Year Estimate 2018 shows the 
number of domestic dwellings in South Kesteven is 63,030 with Grantham being the largest 
urban settlement. The district is divided up into 77 parishes. The district has 30 Wards, 
represented by 56 Councillors.

Our Communities

In South Kesteven there are 150 people per square kilometre, this compares with an overall 
Lincolnshire average of 127 people per square kilometre. The Office for National Statistics mid-
year estimate of population 2018 states a population of 141,853 which shows an estimated 
increase in population of 8,065 since the census taken in 2011 and an increase of 16,976 since 
the 2001 Census. Figures released by the NHS relating to GP registrations however show the 
significantly higher figure of 173,685 which is a huge disparity in information. The overall 
population size is currently projected to increase to 161,400 by the year 2041, through a 
potential net increase in international and internal migration as well as usual population growth. 

South Kesteven has an increasingly diverse population. Mapping of the district shows significant 
increases in black and minority ethnic (BME) communities and, whilst the greatest concentration 
of diversity is located in the north of the district, specifically Grantham, there are ever-growing 
communities from India, Nepal, Africa and parts of Eastern Europe settling in all four urban 
centres of the district. 

Grantham’s diversity is highlighted through events such as the Jubilee Church Life Centre’s 
Celebrate the Nations.  The Centre’s event in November 2018 attracted 200 people 
representing 24 different nationalities. People from Brazil, Britain, China, France, Germany, 
Ghana, Hong Kong, Hungary, India, Indonesia, Italy, Ivory Coast, Latvia, Lithuania, Malaysia, 
Namibia, Nepal, Nigeria, Philippines, Poland, Portugal, Russia, Slovakia, South Africa, Zambia 
and Zimbabwe came together with people from the indigenous communities of the area in 
celebration.  These events are key to helping with integration, acceptance and cohesion. 

According to the Office for National Statistics internal migration figures, last published in mid-
2018 the internal migration inflow for South Kesteven was 7,556. This is countered by an 
outflow of 6,999 individuals leaving the District with a net migration of 557 for the time period. 
This is a decrease of 97(-15%) for the time period. International migration saw an inflow of 469 
and an outflow of 691 leaving a net figure of -222 for the same period. This represents a 
decrease of 341 from the same time period last year. The 2018 Mid-Year Estimate shows that 
there are 41,420 people aged 60 and above resident in South Kesteven which equates to 29% 
of the total population of the district. The proportion of people aged 75 and over is projected to 
increase significantly by 2035 according to POPPI. The current number of people aged 75+ in 
the District is estimated to be 14,202 which is projected to increase by 75% to 24,800 by 2035.

38



Our Tenants 

Age and gender data is based on rent information, the remaining data is based on tenant 
census and core returns completed by tenants on signing up to new tenancy. We hold 
demographic data on approximately 84% of our tenants based on the number completing 
their census returns.

Total number of tenants listed 1/7/19: 6577

8

537

1072 1068 1108 1083

525
427

327
383

39

16 to 19 20 to 29 30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59 60 to 69 70 to 74 75 to 79 80 to 84 85+ unknown
0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Age Profile

4262, 65%

2315, 35%

Female Male

Gender

39



2531, 38%

4046, 62%

Yes No

Disability

38% of our tenants tells us they consider themselves to have a long-term health issue or 
disability.  82% of these define their issue as either physical, frail, heart problems or mental 
health.  9% also tell us they have learning difficulties, difficulties with reading and writing or are 
dyslexic. 5% have sensory issues, the remaining 4% covers cancer, ME, MS and HIV.

  

38
75 81

389

82

751

2
83

11

330

10

606

9 4 45 15

Can
ce

r

Lit
erac

y d
iffi

cu
ltie

s

Dysl
exia Fra

il

Heari
ng I

mpair
ed

Heart
 Problems

HIV/A
ids

Le
arn

ing D
iffi

cu
ltie

s
ME

Mental
 Healt

h Iss
ues

MS

Physi
ca

l D
isa

bilit
ies

Regis
tered Blin

d

Su
bsta

nce
 Abuse

Visu
all

y I
mpair

ed

Wheelch
air

 User
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Difficulties and Disabilities

40



5637

441 499

White British BME Unknown
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Ethnicity

BME is defined as:
Arab Black Caribbean Gypsy/Roma Mixed Caribbean
Asian British Black Other Indian Traveller of Irish Descent
Asian Other Chinese Mixed Other White Irish
Black African Eastern European Mixed Asian White Other
Black British Eastern Other Mixed African

5163

428
986

British Unknown BME
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Nationality

Other nationalities represented within the Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) figure include: 

Bulgarian Greek Lithuanian Slovakian
Chinese Hungarian Maltese South African
Estonian Indian Polish Syrian
Filipino Irish Portuguese Turkish
French Italian Romainian Ukrainian
German Latvian Russian

The three nationalities with the largest representation amongst our tenants are Polish, Lithuanian and 
Portuguese.

41



3247

71

1560

594

1105

Christian Other Nore PNTS Not specified
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Religion or Belief

 
‘Other’ religions or belief systems represented here include:

Buddhist Jedi Sikhism
Hinduism Judaism Spiritualism
Islam Pagan

4229

1032

31 7 10

1268

Hetro PNTO Bisexual Gay Lesbian Not specfied
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Sexuality

37% of tenants do not specify their sexuality or prefer not to say. Government and Stonewall statistics
state the LGB population in Britain is approximately 5-8%, so we should expect that to be reflected
in our tenants. Unspecified means we do not have any answer to the question.

42



209

464

3689

662

32 4

1517

Email Home Phone Letter Mobile Text Work Phone Unknown 
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Preferred means of communication

This chart is provided to show how our tenants prefer us to contact them. Most tenants still prefer 
us to contact them in writing. Those who are happy to be contacted by other means also often 
request a written follow up. Although we have email addresses for 2570 tenants, only 209 have 
told us this their preferred means of contact. Similary, although the majority of our tenants have 
phone numbers, they have not put this as their prefered means of communication. If the tenant
has provided mobile phone details and given us permission to contact them through this means
of communication our Repairs Team will contact the tenant by text message to let them know the 
operative is on their way. Those who have not given us a preference are contacted by letter.  
Whilst, as stated, our tenants prefer us to contact them in writing we have seen a significant rise 
in the number of tenants contacting us by telephone and on line. 

 

14 1

303

15

Audio Sign Language Large Print No stated additonal needs
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Communication Needs

The majority of our tenants (6153) have not stated any specific needs. Large print remains the most 
common need (most tenants with this need are happy to receive communication formatted in 14pt 
font or larger rather then it 'blown up' to A3 size).  Requests for information in alternative format such as 
audio or braille are managed on a case by case basis.  
Demographics of South Kesteven 

People 2017
Source: ONS 

Mid-Year 

2018
Source: ONS 

Mid-Year 

2019
Source: ONS 

Mid-Year 

43



Estimate 2016 Estimate 2017 Estimate 2018
Total Residents 140,193 141,662 141,853
Gender:  Male 67,800 68,448 68,429
Gender: Female 72,393 73,214 73,424

Age 2017
Source: ONS 

Mid-Year 
Estimate 2016

2018
Source: ONS 

Mid-Year 
Estimate 2017

2019
Source: ONS 

Mid-Year 
Estimate 2018

0 -15 25,562 25,854 25,986
16-19 6,244 6,037 5,934
20-29 13,333 13,311 12,969
30-39 15,146 15,663 15,680
40-49 19,405 19,106 18,635
50-59 20,866 21,043 21,229
60-64 8,834 9,028 9,148
65-69 9,718 9,237 8,999
70-74 7,841 8,591 9,071
75-79 5,365 5,687 5,948
80-84 3,883 4,026 4,166
85 + 3,996 4,079 4,088

Top 10 languages 
spoken in South 

Kesteven 
(discounting English)
Source: Census 2011

Polish
Lithuanian
Portuguese
Hungarian
Latvian
Russian
Tagalog
Slovakian
Chinese
French

Religion
Source: ONS (Census 2011)

Buddhist 277
Christian 93,192
Hindu 394
Jewish 101
Muslim 358
Sikh 74
Other 434
No Religion 29,665
Not Stated 9,293 Marital Status

Source: ONS (Census 2011) 
Single 28,454
Married 58,460
Same sex civil partnership 128
Separated
(still legally married or in a same sex civil 
partnership)

3,040

Divorced
(or formally in a same sex civil partnership which 
is now legally dissolved)

10,823

Widowed 8,180

Number of people aged 16-64 estimated to have a disability or 
dependency

Source: PANSI subnational population projections 2019
 2019
People with a learning disability 1,966
People with impaired mobility 4,949
People with a moderate care physical disability 3,555
People with a serious personal care physical disability 769
People with a serious visual impairment 53
People with some hearing loss 9,067
People with a common mental health disorder 15,462
People with a borderline personality disorder 1,963
People with an antisocial personality disorder 2,688
People with a psychotic disorder 569
People with two or more psychotic disorders 5,861
People who are alcohol dependent 4,816
People who are drug dependent 2,739

Sexual Identity
Source: ONS Annual Population 

Survey 2017
Heterosexual 93%
Gay/Lesbian 1%
Bi-sexual 0.8%
Other 1.2%
Don’t know/refuse 
to say

4%

44



Ethnicity in South Kesteven

The Census is the best source of information relating to ethnicity within the District. 

South Kesteven experienced its most significant population changes between the Census of 2001 and 
2011 and the diversity of its residents continues to grow.  At the Census in 2001 the non-British population 
in this area was recorded as less than 1%.  By 2011 this percentage representation had risen to 4.5% and 
according to the 2018 ONS Mid-Year Population Estimate it had increased again to around 9%. These 
figures will be corroborated or amended following the 2021 Census. Whilst numbers of people from 
individual nationalities cannot be described as high in South Kesteven, the number of different nationalities 
is significant.

The Annual Population Survey released in May 2019 provides the estimated population resident in the UK 
by nationality.  The figures are provided in blocks so definitive numbers and locations in terms of country of 
birth are outlines only. The Office for National Statistics therefore shows ethnicity within South Kesteven as 
follows:

EU14 – Estimated total 3,000
This figure would include residents from:
Austria, Denmark, Belgium, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Italy, Luxemburg, Netherlands, Portugal, 
Republic of Ireland, Spain, Sweden

EU8 – Estimated total 8,000
This figure would include residents from:
Czech Republic, Estonia, Poland, Hungary, Latvia, Lithuania, Slovakia, Slovenia

EU2 – Estimated total 2,000
This figure would include residents from:
Bulgaria, Romania

South East Asia – Estimated total 2,000
This figure could include (but is not restricted to) residents from:
Indonesia, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore, Thailand, Vietnam

Sub Saharan Africa – Estimated total 2,000
This figure could include (but is not restricted to) residents from:
Ghana, Kenya, Malawi, Namibia, Nigeria, Sierra Leone, Somalia, South Africa, Sudan, Tanzania, The 
Gambia, Zimbabwe

Community Intelligence

Based on work carried out in the community we have evidence to extend this list to include residents from: 

Afghanistan Albania Argentina Armenia Australia Bahamas
Bangladesh Barbados Belize Brazil Canada China
Columbia Congo Croatia Egypt Guatemala Guyana
Iran Israel Ivory Coast Jamaica Japan Mexico
Moldova Nepal Norway Pakistan Russia Singapore
Sri Lanka Sweden Switzerland Turkey Ukraine USA

45



Our Workforce
 
During the year 2018/19 there were a total of 682 employees within the Council.  During this year 
82 people have ended their employment with the Authority, and we had 78 new starters.  Disciplinary 
action has been taken 25 times and 2 grievances have been addressed. 

Age All 
Employees

New 
Starters

Disciplinary 
Action

Grievances Leavers

<20 0% 0% 0% 0% 1%

20-25 9% 20.5% 24% 50% 12%

26-30 6.5% 8% 24% 0% 8%

31-35 5.5% 15.5% 4% 0% 13%

36-40 10% 11% 0% 0% 9%

41-45 8% 8% 8% 0% 9%

46-50 15% 6% 20% 50% 8%

51-55 14.5% 14% 0% 0% 10%

56-60 17% 8% 16% 0% 17%

61-65 11% 6% 8% 0% 8%

66+ 3.5% 3% 0% 0% 5%

Not stated 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Sex All 
Employees

New 
Starters

Disciplinary 
Action Grievances Leavers

Male 55% 56.5% 80% 50% 63.5%

Female 45% 43.5% 20% 50% 36.5%

Not stated 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Transgender All 
Employees

New 
Starters

Disciplinary 
Action

Grievances Leavers

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

46



Disability All 
Employees

New 
Starters

Disciplinary 
Action

Grievances Leavers

Disabled 2% 0% 8% 0% 0%

Not Disabled 7% 10% 92% 0% 6.5%

Not stated 91% 90% 0% 100% 93.5%

Religion or 
Belief

All 
Employees

New 
Starters

Disciplinary 
Action

Grievances Leavers

Christian 4% 2.5% 6% 0% 2%

Buddhist 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Hindu 0% 1% 0% 0% 1%

Jewish 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Islam 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Sikh 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other 2% 0% 0% 0% 0%

No Religion 2% 4% 0% 0% 0%

Prefer not to 
say

1.5% 0% 0% 0% 2%

Not Stated 90.5% 92.5% 92% 100% 95%

Unknown 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Sexual 
Orientation

All 
Employees

New 
Starters

Disciplinary 
Action

Grievances Leavers

Bisexual 0.16% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Gay 0.16% 1% 0% 0% 1%

Heterosexual 10% 8% 4% 0% 4.5%

Lesbian 0.16% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Prefer not to 
say

0.5% 1% 0% 0% 1%

Not Stated 89% 90% 96% 100% 93.5%

Unknown 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

47



Race All 
Employees

New 
Starters

Disciplinary 
Action

Grievances Leavers

British 76.5% 11.5% 72% 50% 58%

White: British 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

White: Irish 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

White: Roma/Gypsy
(also covers Irish)
Travellers)

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

White: Other White 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Mixed: White and 
Black Caribbean

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Mixed: White and 
Black African

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Mixed: White and 
Asian

0.16% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Mixed: Other Mixed 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asian or Asian British: 
Indian

0% 1% 0% 0% 1%

Asian or Asian British: 
Pakistani

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asian or Asian British: 
Bangladeshi

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asian or Asian British: 
Other Asian

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Black or Black British: 
Caribbean

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Black or Black British: 
African

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Black or Black British: 
Other Black

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Chinese or Other 
Ethnic Group: 
Chinese

0.16% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Chinese or Other 
Ethnic Group: Other 
Ethnic Group

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other Ethnic Group: 
Arab

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Not stated 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Not known/provided 23.3% 87.5% 28% 50% 41%

48



Alternative formats and languages

To ensure all residents of South Kesteven have access to our information material, 
our information is available in a range of different languages and formats, including 
large print, Braille, audio tape and computer disc.

To request a document in a specific language or format, you can ring us or email us 
on:

 01476 40 60 80                                   pr@southkesteven.gov.uk               

This information can be made available in large print, Braille, on audio tape or 
computer disc. If you, or someone you know, might benefit from this service, 
please contact us.
Polski / Polish
Informacja ta może być dostępna w języku polskim. Jeżeli Pańswo albo ktoś kogo Państwo znają, może z tej usługi 
skorzystać, proszę nas kontaktować. 

繁体中文 / Cantonese
本資料有繁体中文版，若你本人或你認識的甚麼人會受益於此版本，敬請聯絡我們。

Magyar / Hungarian
Ezeket az információkat magyar nyelven is tudjuk biztosítani. Ha Ön, vagy valaki, akit Ön ismer igényt tart erre a 
szolgáltatásra, kérem, keressen fel minket.

Latviski / Latvian
Šo informāciju var iegūt arī latviešu valodā. Ja Jums vai kādai no Jūsu paziņai šādi pakalpojumi nāktu par labu, lūdzu 
kontaktējiet mūs. 

Lietuviškai / Lithuanian
Šią informaciją galite gauti lietuvių kalba. Prašome kreiptis į mus, jei jums arba jūsų pažįstamiems ši paslauga galėtų 
būti naudinga.

Português / Portuguese
Esta informação pode ser disponibilizada em português. Se você, ou alguém que conhecer, beneficiar com este 
serviço, por favor contacte-nos.

русский / Russian
Эта информация может быть доступна крупным шрифтом, шрифтом Брайля, на аудиокассете или на 
компьютерном диске. Если вы или кто-то из ваших знакомых может воспользоваться этой услугой, свяжитесь с 
нами.
 
Slovenský / Slovak
Tieto informácie je možné sprístupniť veľkou tlačou, Braillovým písmom, zvukovou páskou alebo počítačovým diskom. 
Ak z tejto služby môžete mať úžitok vy alebo niekto, koho poznáte, kontaktujte nás

Pilipino / Tagalog
Ang impormasyong ito ay maaaring magamit sa malaking print, Braille, sa audio tape o computer disc. Kung ikaw, o 
isang taong kilala mo, ay maaaring makinabang mula sa serbisyong ito, mangyaring makipag-ugnay sa amin

Français / French
Ces informations peuvent être mises à disposition en gros caractères, en braille, sur bande audio ou sur un disque 
d'ordinateur. Si vous, ou quelqu'un que vous connaissez, pourriez bénéficier de ce service, veuillez nous contacter.

49



This page is intentionally left blank



Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
DRAFT Work Programme

Current Issues/Status Activities and Timetable Outcome sought
Frozen Condensate Pipes Governance and Audit 

Committee asked that Rural & 
Communities Committee look at 
this issue due to problems 
encountered during the winter 
of 2017/18 

Committee to scrutinize actions 
taken 

12 
September 
2019 

That problems with the 
condensate pipes had been 
addressed going forward  

Modernising Housing 
Services – Review and 
Restructure

To provide scrutiny around the 
impact of the recent changes to 
the Housing service

12 
September

Annual Position 
Statement on Equality 
and Diversity

To provide scrutiny around the 
progress of SKDC in relation to 
Equality and Diversity

12 
September

To note successes and 
identify further improvement 
opportunities

Turnaround on Void 
Properties 

Issue asked to be discussed by 
the OSC 

21 
November
2019 

Healthy Conversation Engage and inform the Healthy 
Conversation agenda 
- John Turner NHS

21 
November 
2019 

Customer Access 
Strategy

Nova Roberts OSC to discuss draft document 21 November 
2019 

Make any relevant 
recommendations to Cabinet 

Crime and Disorder – Anti 
Social Behavior

Inspector Gary Stuart to be 
invited to OSC 

January 2020

Impact on Rural Services 
of Budget Proposals 

January 2020

Homelessness Progress and review of Strategy January 2020 

51

A
genda Item

 11



Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
DRAFT Work Programme

Loneliness January 2020

Assisted Garden 
Maintenance

March 2020

Safeguarding and Early 
Intervention

March 2020

Crime and Disorder – 
Neighbourhood Policing

March 2020

Channel Shift and 
Customer Services

March 2020

Review of Crowd Funding Assess impact of crowd funding 
proposal 

May 2020

Rural Access to Leisure 
Facilities

May 2020

Disabled Facilities Grant 
– Utilisation of Grant and 
Impact

May 2020

Community Cohesion May 2020

52


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 13 June 2019
	8 Update on Condensate Pipes
	9 Modernising Housing Services - Review and Restructure
	10 Equalities Annual Position Statement 2019
	Annual Position Statement 2019

	11 Work Programme

